
 

 
 

Note:  A work session will be held at 5:30 in the Boardroom to discuss the 
proposed FY 2014 budget and FY 2014-2019 Capital Improvement Program 

 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
CITY OF PARKVILLE, MISSOURI 

 Tuesday, November 19, 2013, 7:00 pm 
City Hall Boardroom 

 
Next numbers:  Bill No.  2750 / Ord. No. 2720 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER and ROLL CALL 
 
2. CITIZEN INPUT 

A. Jim McCall and Audra Heller to provide an update for the Parkville Chamber of Commerce 
 

3. MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of Minutes for the November 5, 2013 regular Board meeting 

B. Approval of Minutes for the October 15, 2013 work session 

C. Approval of Minutes for the October 29, 2013 work session 

D. Approval of Minutes for the November 5, 2013 work session 

E. Accounts Payable  
 

Please Note: All matters listed under “Consent Agenda” are considered to be routine by the Board of Aldermen and will be enacted 
upon under one motion without discussion. Any member of the Board of Aldermen may be allowed to request an item be pulled from 
the Consent Agenda for consideration under the regular agenda if debate and a separate motion are desired. Any member of the 
Board of Aldermen may be allowed to question or comment on an item on the Consent Agenda without a separate motion under the 
regular agenda. Items not removed from the Consent Agenda will stand approved upon motion of any Alderman, followed by a 
second and a majority voice vote to “Approve the Consent Agendas as Published”.  
 

5. ACTION AGENDA 

A. Hiring Ordinance for Nicholas Pence (Police) 

B. 2014 Health Insurance Renewals (Administration) 
 

6. NON-ACTION ITEMS 

A. Downtown Master Plan (Community Development) 
 
7. STAFF UPDATES ON ACTIVITIES 

A. Administration 

B. Police Department 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1  



Board of Aldermen Agenda 11-19-2013 

General Agenda Notes: 
This agenda closed at noon on Thursday, November 14, 2013. With the exception of emergencies or other urgent matters, any item 
requested after the agenda was closed will be placed on the next board meeting agenda. Emergencies and urgent matters may be placed 
on an amended agenda only upon the vote of the Board of Aldermen. 

Page 2 

8. CITY COMMITTEE REPORTS 

A. Channel 2 & Website  
B. Community Land & Recreation Board (Ms. Driver) 
C. Environmental (Ms. Welch)  
D. Farmers Market (Ms. Driver) 

E. Financial Reports – Report Ending October 31, 2013 (Mr. Werner) 

F. Nature Sanctuaries (Ms. Driver) 
G. Policy (Ms. Welch & Mr. Werner) 

 
9. OTHER COMMITTEE REPORTS 

A. Friends of Parkville Animal Shelter FOPAS (Ms. Snyder) 
B. Parkville Economic Development Council (Ms. McManus) 
C. Parkville Area Chamber of Commerce (Mr. Werner) 
D. Main Street Association (Ms. Lamer) 
E. Banneker School (Mr. Brooks) 
F. Park University (Ms. Snyder) 

 
10. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS FROM THE BOARD 
 
11. ADJOURN 

 

























ITEM 4E 
For 11-19-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Policy Report 

 
Date:  November 19, 2013 
 

Prepared By: 
 

Tim Blakeslee 
Assistant to the City Administrator 

Reviewed By: 
 
Matthew Chapman 
Finance/Human Resources Director 
 

ISSUE: 
Approval of Accounts Payable Invoices, Payroll Expenditures, Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) 
Payments, Insurance Payments, and 1st of the Month Checks from 11/1/2013 - 11/15/2013. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Attached are the statements of approved payments, per the City’s Purchasing Policy, for the 
period from Nov 1, 2013, through Nov 15, 2013. All disbursements must be reviewed and 
approved by the Board of Aldermen prior to the release of City funds. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
Accounts Payable $ 361,886.62 
Payroll $ 48,679.53 
ETF Payments $ - 
Insurance Payments $ - 
1st of the Month $ - 

TOTAL $ 410,566.15 
 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Approve the release of funds 
2. Deny the release of funds and provide further direction to City Administration.  
3. Deny any portion of the release of funds and provide further direction to City Administration.  
4. The Board of Aldermen could deny the request to approve the policy report as set forth.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the release of funds as summarized in the attached statements.  
 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move to appropriate $ 410,566.15 of city funds to pay salaries and accounts. 
 
ATTACHMENT/S: 
1. Accounts Payable 
2. Payroll 

 





























ITEM 5A 
11-19-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Policy Report 

 
Date: Monday, November 4, 2013 
 
Prepared by:       Reviewed by: 
 
Kevin L. Chrisman      Lauren Palmer 
Chief of Police       City Administrator 
 
TOPIC: 
Request for approval of an ordinance employing Nicholas E. Pence as a police officer. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The police department recently had a vacancy and from a selection process in  
mid-summer. Nicholas E. Pence was selected to proceed forward with the hiring process. He 
has successfully completed all necessary requirements for consideration for hire.   
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
This is a budgeted position with a starting annual salary of $37,000. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached ordinance and hiring of Nicholas E. Pence as a police officer effective 
November 20, 2013. 
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:  
I move that Bill No. ____, an ordinance hiring Nicholas E. Pence as a police officer for the City 
of Parkville effective November 20, 2013, be approved for first reading. 
 
I move that Bill No. ____ be approved on first reading and passed to second reading by title 
only.  
 
I move that Bill No. ____ be approved on second reading to become Ordinance No. ____. 
 
POLICY: 
The Board of Aldermen must approve all hiring. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 

1. Hiring Ordinance  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BILL NO. 2750 ORDINANCE NO. 2720 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EMPLOYMENT OF NICHOLAS E. PENCE AS A 
POLICE OFFICER FOR THE CITY OF PARKVILLE. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF PARKVILLE, 
MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That Nicholas E. Pence is hereby employed as a Police Officer for the City of 
Parkville, at an annual salary of $37,000, effective November 20, 2013. 

Section 2. That Mr. Pence shall receive other benefits in accordance with the City's adopted 
personnel policy as may be amended by the Board from time to time. 

Section 3. Mr. Pence shall serve at the will of the Board and his employment may be 
terminated at any time with or without cause. 

Section 4. This ordinance is effective upon its passage and approval. 

PASSED and APPROVED this 19th day of November 2013. 

ATTESTED: 

,11\lll111,, 
~,,,, CITY 111 ••. 

,, -~~ ········OR. 
::::-' "'-"" ...... ·· ··· ... ,•\) 

::::1 .· '·)I 
~ (5.:' PLATTE \ :P :. 
- ' COtJl\JTY : ;;o::; ·: 
::2_~ i:S: 

1, 1-.., MISSOURI_.:;.::.·. 
cj) ', ,· /'J 

··.. . ••• •• 7i' . ·· ...... . 

Ord No. __ , Page 1 of 1 



ITEM 5B 
For 11-19-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 

 

 

CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Policy Report 

 
Date:  Wednesday, November 13, 2013 
 
Prepared By: 
Lauren Palmer  
City Administrator  

Reviewed By: 
Matthew Chapman 
Finance/Human Resources Director 
 

ISSUE: 
Authorize the 2014 Employee Health Insurance Renewal  
 
BACKGROUND:  
The City currently offers two employee health benefit plans through United Healthcare (UHC). 
United Healthcare proposed a 20.4 percent premium increase for the 2014 renewal, so the City 
accepted proposals from alternative providers. Through that process, UHC dropped its increase 
back to 16.4 percent, but Coventry submitted a more affordable proposal. Coventry proposed 
four plans that are very comparable to the benefits currently offered through the City’s two plans 
with UHC. Coventry offers a December 31, 2013, renewal option, so the City can avoid the 
negative impacts to employees (co-insurance and deductibles) of the December 1 renewal that 
was required by other insurers. Coventry includes all of the area hospitals in network, so though 
there may be some level of provider disruption, the savings outweigh any potential impact.  
 
At the Finance Committee meeting on November 12, 2013, staff presented a recommendation 
to adopt Coventry Plan Option 3 (buy-up) and Option 4 (base) at a combined overall decrease 
of 5.21% from the current UHC rates. Upon further analysis, staff determined that Coventry Plan 
Option 1 (buy-up) and Option 2 (base) are the most similar to the City’s current plans. Plans 3 
and 4 would raise the co-insurance share to 50%, while the current UHC plans are at 20%. This 
could create a significant impact on any employee who exceeds the deductible during the plan 
year. Therefore, staff recommends offering Coventry Option 4 as the base plan and Coventry 
Option 1 as the buy-up plan for City employees. With this change, the overall plan cost is nearly 
identical to health insurance costs in 2013.  
 
The difference between Options 1 and 4 will be assumed by employees who choose the richer 
benefit plan. However, since the difference in cost is so great between the single options, which 
are currently provided at no charge, staff recommends dividing the extra cost of the single 
option buy-up plan between employee and employer. This will mitigate the impact to single 
employees of a major cost increase in one year. Both single option plans represent a 
considerable cost savings to the City over any of the other options, so it is advantageous to the 
City to incentivize employees to continue to choose the single option.  
 
United Healthcare is currently providing COBRA and flexible spending administration for the 
City at no cost as part of the company’s overall package of services. After converting to 
Coventry, the City will have to establish a new provider for these services. Staff is currently 
evaluating options but anticipates these services will cost approximately $2,000 per year, which 
can be absorbed by the cost savings over the UHC proposal.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT:  
The table below demonstrates the total cost of the proposals currently under review:  

 Current Plan UHC Proposal Coventry Proposal 
(including admin fees) 

Total Annual Cost $263,349 $306,538 $265,148 



ITEM 5B 
For 11-19-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 

 

 

The budget impact to the City of either proposal is dependent upon how premiums are shared 
between the City and employees. Based on the discussion at the budget work session on 
November 5, 2013, staff prepared three possible options that were reviewed at the Finance 
Committee on November 12.  
 

1. Option 1 - Keep the dollar amount of the employee cost share flat in 2014 – This 
approach would keep the dollar amount impact to each employee level in 2014. The full 
value of each plan increase/decrease would be absorbed by the City. This approach 
would deviate from the prior method of the City paying an even amount for each plan (1 
or 4) within each category (employee, employee+spouse, employee+children, family).  
  

2. Option 2 – Move toward a uniform employer dollar cost share for all plan options – This 
plan is based on the philosophy that the City should cover a flat amount for health 
benefits regardless of the category or plan chosen by the employee. The impact to the 
family plans would be significant if that conversion was made in a single year, so the 
scenarios shown represent an interim step.  
 

3. Option 3 – Share the increase between employee and employer, and add a single cost 
share – This option splits the impact of the increase for Plan 1 between the employee 
and employer. The same dollar amount of premium would be covered by the employer 
for Plan 4. A cost share would be added for single coverage for those employees who 
choose the richer benefit plan.  

 
ALTERNATIVES:  

1. Authorize converting to Coventry for employee health insurance coverage, effective 
December 31, 2013.  

2. Authorize maintaining coverage with United Healthcare and initiating the process for a 
December 1, 2013, renewal.  

3. Provide alternative direction to meet the desires of the Board of Aldermen. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Authorize converting to Coventry for employee health insurance coverage, effective December 
31, 2013; and authorize Option 3 as the preferred approach for sharing premiums between the 
employee and employer.  
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Authorize converting to Coventry for employee health insurance coverage, effective December 
31, 2013; and authorize Option 3 as the preferred approach for sharing premiums between the 
employee and employer.  
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
I move to authorize converting to Coventry for employee health insurance coverage, effective 
December 31, 2013; and authorize Option 3 as the approach for sharing premiums between the 
employee and employer.  
 
POLICY: 
The Board of Aldermen must approve all purchases in excess of $10,000.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Premium Share Options 
2. UHC Renewal Proposal 
3. Coventry Renewal Proposal



 

COVENTRY PROPOSAL OPTIONS 
 

Option 1 – Employee $ Cost Share is Kept Flat (2013 to 2014) 
  

AVERAGE VALUE OF 1.2% COLA = $521

Total Total
$ % $ % $ $ % $ % $ 1 4

Employee Only 389$        100% ‐$             0% 389$        328$        100% ‐$             0% 328$        EE $0 $0
Employee + Spouse 548$        67% 269$        33% 817$       468$       68% 221$       32% 689$       EE/Sp $0 $0
Employee + Children 489$        66% 250$        34% 739$       418$       67% 205$       33% 623$       EE/Ch $0 $0
Employee + Family 815$        68% 391$        32% 1,206$    696$       68% 321$       32% 1,017$    EE/Fam $0 $0

Impact to City = ‐$670

City of Parkville Employee Health Benefit
Coventry Plan 1 Coventry Plan 4

City Employee City Employee Annual Impact to Employee

 
 
Option 2 – Move toward a Uniform Employer $ Cost Share for All Plan Options 
 

AVERAGE VALUE OF 1.2% COLA = $521

Total Total
$ % $ % $ $ % $ % $ 1 4

Employee Only 328$        84% 61$          16% 389$        328$        100% ‐$             0% 328$        EE $733 $0
Employee + Spouse 500$        61% 317$        39% 817$       500$       73% 189$       27% 689$       EE/Sp $574 ‐$387
Employee + Children 500$        68% 239$        32% 739$       500$       80% 123$       20% 623$       EE/Ch ‐$129 ‐$985
Employee + Family 725$        60% 481$        40% 1,206$    725$       71% 292$       29% 1,017$    EE/Fam $1,082 ‐$351

Impact to City = ‐$3,677

City of Parkville Employee Health Benefit
Coventry Plan 1 Coventry Plan 4

City Employee City Employee Annual Impact to Employee

 
 
Option 3 – Share Increase 50/50 across All Plans – Add a Single Cost Share for the Richer Plan 
 

AVERAGE VALUE OF 1.2% COLA = $521

Total Total
$ % $ % $ $ % $ % $ 1 4

Employee Only 359$        92% 30$          8% 389$        328$        100% ‐$             0% 328$        EE $360 $0
Employee + Spouse 524$        64% 293$        36% 817$       524$       76% 165$       24% 689$       EE/Sp $288 ‐$675
Employee + Children 476$        64% 263$        36% 739$       476$       76% 147$       24% 623$       EE/Ch $153 ‐$697
Employee + Family 770$        64% 436$        36% 1,206$    770$       76% 247$       24% 1,017$    EE/Fam $539 ‐$891

Insurance Impact to City =  $1,576

City of Parkville Employee Health Benefit
Coventry Plan 1 Coventry Plan 4

City Employee City Employee Annual Impact to Employee

 
 

 



 

UHC PROPOSAL OPTIONS 
 

Option 1 – Employee $ Cost Share is Kept Flat (2013 to 2014) 
  

AVERAGE VALUE OF 1.2% COLA = $521

Total Total
$ % $ % $ $ % $ % $ K09 K1‐5

Employee Only 427$        100% ‐$             0% 427$        367$        90% ‐$             0% 409$        EE $0 $0
Employee + Spouse 625$        70% 269$        30% 895$       637$       74% 221$       26% 858$       EE/Sp $0 $0
Employee + Children 581$        70% 250$        30% 831$       592$       74% 205$       26% 797$       EE/Ch $0 $0
Employee + Family 908$        70% 391$        30% 1,299$    925$       74% 321$       26% 1,246$    EE/Fam $0 $0

Insurance Impact to City =  42,272.70$      

Annual Impact to Employee

City of Parkville Employee Health Benefit
Option 1 ‐ K09 Option 2 ‐ K1‐5

City Employee City Employee

 
 
Option 2 – Move toward a Uniform Employer $ Cost Share for All Plan Options 
 

AVERAGE VALUE OF 1.2% COLA = $521

Total Total
$ % $ % $ $ % $ % $ K09 K1‐5

Employee Only 409$        96% 17$          4% 426$        409$        ‐$             409$        EE $204 $0
Employee + Spouse 585$        65% 310$        35% 895$       585$       68% 273$       32% 858$       EE/Sp $485 $624
Employee + Children 585$        70% 246$        30% 831$       585$       73% 212$       27% 797$       EE/Ch ‐$51 $81
Employee + Family 865$        67% 434$        33% 1,299$    865$       69% 381$       31% 1,246$    EE/Fam $520 $720

Impact to City = $33,859

City Employee Annual Impact to Employee

City of Parkville Employee Health Benefit
UHC Plan 1 ‐ K09 UHC Plan 2 ‐ K1‐5

City Employee

 
 
 
Option 3 – Share Increase 80/20 across All Plans – Add a Single Cost Share for Richer Plan 
 

Total Total
$ % $ % $ $ % $ % $ K09 K1‐5

Employee Only 409$        96% 17$          4% 426$        409$        100% ‐$             0% 409$        EE $204 $0
Employee + Spouse 601$        67% 294$        33% 895$       601$       70% 257$       30% 858$       EE/Sp $303 $434
Employee + Children 557$        67% 273$        33% 831$       557$       70% 240$       30% 797$       EE/Ch $281 $412
Employee + Family 872$        67% 428$        33% 1,299$    872$       70% 375$       30% 1,246$    EE/Fam $439 $644

Impact to City = $31,454

City Employee Annual Impact to EmployeeCity Employee
UHC Plan 1 ‐ K09 UHC Plan 2 ‐ K1‐5

 
 

 



 

 

CURRENT 2013 PLAN WITH UHC (for comparative purposes) 
 

Total Total
$ % $ % $ $ % $ % $
366$        100% ‐$             0% 366$        343$        100% ‐$             0% 343$       
499$        65% 269$        35% 769$       499$       69% 221$       31% 720$      
464$        65% 250$        35% 714$       464$       69% 205$       31% 669$      
725$        65% 391$        35% 1,116$    725$       69% 321$       31% 1,046$   

Option 2 ‐ K1‐5Option 1 ‐ K09
City of Parkville Employee Health Benefit

City Employee City Employee

 



City of Parkville, MO
UHC Medical Renewal Rates 

Effective December 1, 2013

MEDICAL United Health Care United Health Care United Health Care

Current Buy up Plan Current Base Plan Option 3

Carrier Website www.myuhc.com www.myuhc.com www.myuhc.com

Plan Type & Network K09K/RXML K1-5/RX ML HSA K3-9/Rx NO

In Network Out of Network In Network Out of Network

Annual Deductible (calendar year) 

Individual $500 $1,000 $1,000 $2,000

Family $1,500 $3,000 $3,000 $6,000

Coinsurance 20% 50% 20% 50%

Individual $3,000 $4,000 $3,500 $7,000

Family $6,000 $8,000 $7,000 $14,000

Lifetime Maximum

Per Individual Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited

Preventive Care Covered at 100% Ded; Then 50% Covered at 100% Ded; Then 50%

Physician Services

Office Visits $25/$50 Ded; Then 50% $25/$50 Ded; Then 50%

$25 co-pay N/A $25 co-pay N/A

Urgent Care $75 Ded; Then 50% $75 Ded; Then 50%

Hospital Services

Inpatient Care Ded; Then 20% Ded; Then 50% Ded; Then 20% Ded; Then 50%

Outpatient Surgery Ded; Then 20% Ded; Then 50% Ded; Then 20% Ded; Then 50%

Emergency room $300 copay, Then 0% $250 copay, Then 0%

Prescription Drugs Integrated medical & Rx ded

Tier 1 / 2 / 3 / 4 Non-Specialty $10/$35/$60 $10/$35/$60 Ded; Then $10/$35/$60

Tier 1 / 2 / 3 / 4 Specialty $10/$100/$300 $10/$100/$300 Ded; Then $20/$100/$300

Mail Order (90 Day Supply) 2.5X Retail N/A 2.5X Retail N/A

Note: This is only a summary.  Please refer to the booklet/certificate for specific details. If a conflict arises, the booklet/certificate will govern in all cases.

Current Buy up Plan Current Base Plan UHC Option 3

Unit Cost: Current rates Renewal rates Renewal rates Renewal rates

Employee Only 12 1 $366.00 $426.02 $351.07 $408.65

Employee + Spouse 0 4 $768.60 $894.65 $737.25 $858.16

Employee + Child(ren) 4 7 $713.70 $830.75 $684.59 $796.86
Employee + Family 4 2 $1,116.30 $1,299.37 $1,070.77 $1,246.38

Total Estimated Monthly Cost 20 14 $11,712.00 $13,632.77 $10,233.74 $11,912.07

$140,544.00 $163,593.22 $122,804.88 $142,944.88

Overall Percentage of Increase/Decrease 16.40% 16.40%

Total Estimated Combined Monthly Cost $21,945.74 $25,544.84

$263,348.88 $306,538.10
16.40%

$3,599.10
Combined Percentage of Increase/Decrease

Combined Monthly Change From Current

Maximum Out-of-pocket Includes Deducble

MONTHLY COST

Total Estimated Annual Cost

    Vision Exam 1 every 2 years UHC vision network

Total Estimated Combined Annual Cost

http://www.myuhc.com/
http://www.myuhc.com/




ITEM 6A 
For 11-19-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

M:\city clerk\11-19-2013 BoA Meeting\6A - Downtown Master Plan\Summary - DMP - 11-19-13_Media.doc 

CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Policy Report 

 
Date:  Thursday, November 14, 2013 
 
Prepared By: 
 
Sean Ackerson 
Assistant City Administrator / 
Community Development Director 
 

Reviewed By: 
 
Lauren Palmer 
City Administrator 
 

ISSUE:   
Presentation and discussion of Parkville Downtown Master Plan draft report.  
 
BACKGROUND:   
The City is working on a Parkville Downtown Master Plan to build consensus around a common 
vision, goals and objectives for Downtown Parkville. The plan will blend public input with 
economic and engineering analysis to identify recommended strategies, policies and plans for 
enhancing downtown. During the meeting, the project consultant team will provide project 
updates and present major plan recommendations from the current plan draft. 
 
To date the project team, lead by Ochser, Hare & Hare, has collected information through public 
workshops, an online forum and meetings with representative business owners, property 
owners, residents, Park University staff, utility providers and other stakeholders, as well as 
public presentations to the Board of Aldermen, Planning Commission and the Community Land 
and Recreation Board (CLARB).  Through these forums and discussions, the team worked to 
better understand the challenges facing downtown and the diversity of personal interests, 
objectives and preferences for addressing these challenges as a means of identifying common 
goals and developing realistic strategies to meet them.   
 
During the meeting, the consultants will summarize the vision and major plan recommendations 
from the current draft, as well as feedback received from the Planning Commission and 
Community Land and Recreation Board.  The draft was presented to the Planning Commission 
at the Tuesday, November 12 meeting.  With the exception of the recommendation to delay 
installation of improvements needed to eliminate or reduce train noise, the Commission 
expressed general support for the concepts presented.  Members asked that the issue of 
mitigating train noise be further explored.  
 
CLARB reviewed the draft plan at the meeting on Wednesday, November 13. CLARB 
expressed support for the vision and concepts.  The vision was described as “spot on,” and 
members expressed their general support for the parks, recreation and trail components of the 
plan.  Beyond the recommendations included, some members suggested including a 
recommendation for a pedestrian overpass over the railroad, as previously recommended in the 
Livable Communities Study.  A member also suggested that cost-prohibitive recommendations 
not be included, and other recommended identifying means of implementing some 
recommendations without public funding.  
 
Currently, the plan draft is approximately 75 percent complete.  Following discussion with the 
Board, the project consultants will make necessary revisions and complete missing elements, 
including the strategies for implementing plans and inserting photos and other graphic examples 
and illustrations.  Under the grant, the final draft must be completed prior to November 30. 



ITEM 6A 
For 11-19-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 

M:\city clerk\11-19-2013 BoA Meeting\6A - Downtown Master Plan\Summary - DMP - 11-19-13_Media.doc 

Following completion, the final draft will be forwarded to the Board of Aldermen for review, and 
adoption of the final plan will be scheduled for the Board meeting on December 17, 2013.  

BUDGET IMPACT:  
This item is for discussion only. With the exception of the previously approved local grant match, 
there is no budget impact at this time. The project is possible through a Sustainable 
Communities Regional Planning Grant administered by the Mid-American Regional Council and 
local funds from the City of Parkville and Park University. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Provide direction to City Administration and the consultant team regarding the Downtown

Master Plan draft and recommendations.  
2. Table the discussion.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Provide direction to City Administration and the consultant team regarding the Downtown 
Master Plan draft and recommendations.  

SUGGESTED MOTION 
As this is a discussion item, no motion is required.  

ATTACHMENT: 
1. Draft Downtown Master Plan (≈75% completion)
2. Excerpt from Plan - Chapter 3: Recommendations

Hard copy on file at City Hall



 24 

Section 3.0 

Recommendations  

3.1 Introduction
  e heart of the Parkville Downtown Master Plan 
(PDMP) is the Master Plan Recommendations.    e 
PDMP attempts to distill the community input, existing 
conditions analysis, and market analysis into a de# ned 
group of recommendations to help guide future e$ orts 
to manage change and enhance success in Downtown 
Parkville. 

As stated in section 1.7, the Overarching   eme/Vision 
for the Master Plan is: 

“  e preservation of the small town, historic and charming 
character of downtown, while capitalizing on opportunities 
to enhance commerce, economic activity, and community 
interaction is critical to the future success of downtown 
Parkville.”

  e community’s key principles for achieving this vision 
are:  

• Preservation and protection of residential 
neighborhoods

• Preservation and protection of Main Street Transition 
Area (from 2nd Street to 6th Street)

• Preservation and enhancement of small town historic 
and charming look, feeling and aesthetics

• Preservation and enhancement of park and natural 
resources

• Ensure that all future development/redevelopment/
in# ll is compatible with the downtown character

• Enhance downtown as a destination for local/
regional tourism and commerce

  e recommendations of the Master Plan reinforce 
these principles.   e PDMP is the long- range plan for 
achieving the stated vision.

3.2  De" nition of Downtown Character
Key to the discussion of the vision for the Master Plan 
is the idea of Downtown character.   rough many 
discussions, the one constant was the thought that 
Downtown Parkville needed to be Downtown Parkville 
and that the character of the feeling of ‘Downtown’ 
needed to be preserved. 

  is, however, did not mean that no changes should be 
made to downtown, or that the speci# c current state of 
buildings, streetscape, materials, maintenance, quality, 
mix of available services or uses, and general # nish was 
the measure of Downtown character.

What was clear was that Downtown character meant the 
idyllic image of small-mid-western river town: historic 
buildings with restored facades; an interesting and 
invigorated streetscape that is human scale; buildings 
that match the size and scale of the current buildings in 
Downtown Parkville; ‘historic’ detailing in buildings, 
signage, lighting, and overall appearance; colors that 
match the style of the buildings and the historic feel; 
materials that are compatible with their use (commercial 
or residential) and are durable and appropriate; tree-
lined residential streets with sidewalks. 

  e community’s de# nition of Downtown character 
didn’t preclude new development from happening, 
but wanted it to ‘# t’ in with the overall nature of the 
downtown.   is also accepted the fact that there 
are numerous existing conditions in and around 
Downtown that do not # t this vision of Downtown 
Character.   e reinforcement of Downtown Character, 
through enhancement, redevelopment, maintenance, or 
improvement is critical to community’s desires for the 
future of Downtown Parkville, and is addressed in the 
Master Plan Recommendations.    



25 

3.3  Master Plan Recommendations
  e Master Plan recommendations are divided into eight 
categories for clarity and focus.    ose eight categories 
are:

• Land Use

• Transportation and Parking

• Utility Infrastructure and Flooding

• Parks, Recreation, and Natural Resources

• Character of the Built Environment/Aesthetics

• Operations and Function

• Economic Development

• Development, Redevelopment, and In# ll

Each Master Plan category identi# es the key issues to 
be addressed that emerged during the master planning 
process.    ey are followed by recommendations designed 
to address these issues.  For each recommendation, 
an additional set of supporting strategies % eshes 
out the recommendation and provides additional 
background, understanding, and implementation of 
the recommendations.    ese strategies provide the 
detail with which to accomplish the recommendation.  
Further implementation strategies are discussed in 
greater detail in Chapter 4, but it is important to # rst 
understand the opportunities that exist to achieve each 
of the recommendations.  In some cases, there is overlap 
between the categories and their recommendations and 
strategies, which illustrates how interconnected the 
issues in Downtown Parkville are with each other.

3.4  # e Big Picture
It is important to note that there are certain community 
and culture issues that emerged in the community 
engagement process that do not # t neatly into one of the 
eight recommendation categories.    ey are not about 
physical improvements needed to preserve and enhance 
downtown Parkville.  Instead, they relate mostly to 
the interpersonal relationships that exist between the 
property owners, business owners, and residents of 
Downtown Parkville. 

  ese issues make creating a coordinated e$ ort for 
the betterment of all involved in Downtown Parkville 
di&  cult. Frustration runs high and participation waxes 
and wanes based upon how ‘new’ a person is to the 
historic interpersonal challenges in the area.   ese issues 
must be addressed for long-term success in Downtown 
Parkville.    e summary of these ‘Big Picture’ themes 
and how they might be addressed follows:

Big Picture 

1. Issue:  Internal relationships are di&  cult.   ere are 
many entrenched and opposing views by stakeholders 
in the area.

Strategies to address the Issue:

• Find common ground.

• Understand what the opposing groups want.

• Find out what each group is willing to compromise 
on for the overall good of downtown.

• Get people involved again. People are no longer 
staying involved in the betterment of Downtown 
because of these issues.

• Ensure that everyone will gain more with success 
than with the status quo.

• Understand the con% icts and mediate.

2. Issue:    ere is a lack of community leadership to 
unify and unite the disparate parties and interests in 
the downtown area. People are polarized by self interest. 
Apathy reigns because ‘nothing changes’.

Strategies to address the Issue:

• Establish a leadership committee for the Downtown 
area.   is committee should be made up of 
representatives from the polarizing groups. It should 
be felt that the ‘deck is not stacked’ for or against 
any one interest or agenda.   is committee could be 
the voice for the Downtown area.

•  Encourage community leaders with no vested interest 
in Downtown to mediate between the various 
groups to # nd common ground so a direction can 
be taken.   is de facto leader could help disparate 



 26 

Recommendations 

groups realize that they have more in common than 
they think and to work toward common goals.

• Given time and economic interest, new leadership 
may emerge that could unite the Downtown groups 
toward a common goal

3. Issue:  Most people’s image of Parkville is of 
downtown.   is gives Downtown brand recognition 
in the wider marketplace.   e state of Downtown can 
re% ect positively/negatively on the entire community. 

Strategies to address the Issue:

•   ere is an opportunity for downtown to capitalize 
on its brand recognition and facilitate the creation 
of a destination that people want to come back to 
and visit by reinvesting in the quality and character 
of the area and providing amenities, goods, and 
services those visitors desire. 

• Focus on creating a comprehensive marketing 
program for the entire area.   at showcases the 
unique o$ erings of the area (shops, parks, dining). 
Market as a whole shopping/entertainment district.

4. Issue:    e inability to create change on a larger scale 
is a real issue. Interpersonal relationships and lack of 
leadership in the area causes frustration and a lack of 
participation in Downtown issues.

Strategies to address the Issue:

• Focus e$ orts on creating manageable and supported 
successes that can lead to forward progress and 
momentum.

• Small successes that are visible, collective, and 
noncontroversial in nature can be especially e$ ective 
in building momentum toward even greater 
successes in the future.

3.5 Land Use Recommendations
Land use planning is used to address a growing or 
shifting population and their current and projected 
future needs and desires.  It sets general guidelines for 
development patterns that serve the population through 
a mix of land uses.  In the case of PDMP, land use 
planning is about the preservation of those existing uses 
that # t with the preservation of Downtown Character 
and the identi# cation of enhancement or redevelopment 
opportunities for those that do not.

Key Issues

•   e residential neighborhoods add signi# cantly to 
the historic character and value of downtown.

•   e Main Street Transition Area (from 2nd Street 
to 6th Street) o$ ers a unique, organic blend of 
uses that serve as an ideal bu$ er between the 
downtown commercial district and the residential 
neighborhoods. 

• Residents on along West Street feel isolated from 
downtown.

•   e downtown area o$ ers a limited range of housing 
choices.

•   e downtown commercial district is not currently 
capitalizing on the visitors and energy generated by 
English Landing Park.

•   e downtown commercial district struggles to 
balance the need to serve the local community, 
versus the desire become a destination shopping 
experience.

•   e downtown commercial district lacks the proper 
mix of retail, service, and dining options that would 
be required to make it a true destination draw.



27 

Recommendations

Recommendations 

1. Preserve and protect the historic character of the 
residential neighborhoods in the downtown area.

• Establish a non-encroachment boundary that 
restricts non-residential uses in the residential land 
use zone.

• Modify the zoning and subdivision regulations for 
the Downtown area to allow for historic development 
patterns to be implemented in the residential land 
use zone.

• Develop and adopt an overlay district for the 
residential land use zone that ensures that :

• All future redevelopment and/or in# ll in the 
residential neighborhood is similar to the existing 
neighborhood in size, massing, scale, materials, 
architectural style.

• Tear downs of existing properties are discouraged.

• Consolidation of multiple properties is 
discouraged.

• Removal of street trees and overstory vegetation 
is discouraged.   

• Use overlay district design guidelines to encourage 
home rehabilitations in lieu of teardowns/new 
house construction in order to maintain historical 
character.

• Establish a Missouri 353 Redevelopment program to 
encourage and assist in the rehabilitation of existing 
homes through the use of tax abatement for actual 
improvements made to rehabilitated structures.

• Encourage the redevelopment of the West Street 
residential properties identi# ed in the Future 
Land Use Diagram (Fig. X).    e residential 
redevelopment should be single family in nature, 
and should complement the character of the existing 
housing in the downtown residential neighborhood 
(see ‘3.9 Redevelopment and In# ll’).

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX



 28 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.1 – PDMP Future Land Use Diagram



29 

Recommendations

2. Preserve and protect the mixed use nature of the 
Main Street Transition Zone (from 2nd Street to 6th 
Street), while clearly de" ning its boundaries to limit 
encroachment into the residential neighborhood. 

• Establish a non-encroachment boundary that restricts 
encroachment into the surrounding residential 
neighborhood, and commercial encroachment into 
the Transition Area from the commercial core south 
of 2nd Street. 

• Modify the zoning and subdivision regulations for 
the Downtown area to allow for historic development 
patterns to be implemented in the Main Street 
Transition Zone.

o Develop and adopt an overlay district for the Main 
Street Transition Zone that ensures that :

• All future redevelopment and/or in# ll in 
the neighborhood is similar to the existing 
neighborhood in size, massing, scale, materials, 
architectural style.

• Tear downs of existing properties are discouraged.

• Consolidation of multiple properties is 
discouraged.

• Removal of street trees and overstory vegetation 
is discouraged.

• Tear down of existing residential property within 
the Main Street Transition Area and replacement 
with commercial structures shall be prohibited.

• Further construction of non-residential buildings 
in the Main Street Transition Area shall be 
prohibited.

• Allow all residential structures with the transition 
area to maintain commercial uses in them.    

• Use the overlay district design guidelines to encourage 
home rehabilitations in lieu of teardowns/new 
house construction in order to maintain historical 
character.

• Establish a Missouri 353 Redevelopment program to 
encourage and assist in the rehabilitation of existing 
homes through the use of tax abatement for actual 
improvements made to rehabilitated structures.

• Relax o$  street parking requirements in the zoning 
code for commercial uses located within the 
transition area.

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX



 30 

Recommendations

3. Expand the boundaries of the downtown 
commercial shopping district in a way that 
complements the character and mix of uses that 
already exist.

• Capitalize on the potential for commercial and/or 
mixed use redevelopment opportunities along East 
Street that would be compatible with downtown 
Main Street (see ‘3.9 Redevelopment and In# ll 
Recommendations’).

• Capitalize on the potential for commercial 
redevelopment opportunities for the municipal 
parking lot south of the railway that would include 
commercial uses that would be compatible with 
downtown Main Street (see ‘Redevelopment and 
In# ll Recommendations’).

4. Enhance downtown synergy by increasing the 
cross tra$  c between the commercial district and 
English Landing Park. 

• Improve the pedestrian experience between the 
commercial district and English Landing Park.

• Develop a cohesive streetscape plan for Main 
Street and East Street that encourages the 
connectivity between the commercial district 
and the park.    e streetscape plan should include 
improved sidewalks and crosswalk improvements, 
amenities, site furnishings, landscaping, signage, 
and way# nding solutions to create a more inviting 
and enjoyable streetscape experience.

• Provide amenities along the streetscape that are 
targeted at meeting the needs of park users.  
Examples include dog parking, dog fountain, 
pod stations, bike parking, and benches.

• Improve pedestrian safety and the perception of 
safety for users crossing the railway.  

• Capitalize on the commercial redevelopment of 
the municipal parking lot south of the railway 
as way to ‘close the gap’ between the commercial 
district and the park (see ‘3.9 Redevelopment and 
In# ll Recommendations’).

• Encourage additional uses in the commercial district 
that cater to park users.

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX



31 

Recommendations

5. Encourage the downtown commercial district to 
provide a more balanced mix of services that meet 
both the needs of the community and out-of-town 
visitors. 

• Identify and foster the continued growth of full-
time businesses that have proven to be successful in 
downtown Parkville.

• Identify and encourage the establishment of 
additional full-time businesses that can and would 
be supported by the local community.

• Identify and encourage the establishment of 
destination services that would attract out-of-town 
visitors.

• Create a downtown experience that meets the needs 
of out-of-town visitors.  In addition to o$ ering 
quality goods and services, downtown must build 
on its historic character and develop a truly unique 
atmosphere that makes shoppers want to continue 
to come back.

• Develop a marketing plan that positions downtown 
Parkville as a destination shopping experience.

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX



 32 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

3.6 Transportation and Parking 
Recommendations
  e focus of the PDMP is to maximize existing 
transportation resources and minimize impacts to allow 
for livable and context sensitive solutions. Multi-modal 
transportation includes streets, sidewalks, trails, railroads 
and parking lots. Parking plays a key role in managing 
and operating an e&  cient downtown transportation 
system, it is necessary to address parking issues which 
work hand-in-hand with managing transportation 
mobility. 

Key Issues

•   e existing sidewalk and trail network is incomplete 
in Downtown Parkville. While there are competing 
perspectives on the level of investment that should 
be made on non-motorized connectivity, it is 
important to look at connectivity in a broad context 
not just focused on downtown but connections to 
the surrounding community.

• Improving vehicular % ow by addressing travel speeds 
throughout downtown was an important discussion 
point. Many felt that there was a need to improve or 
“speed up” tra&  c through the downtown but that 
directly competes with posted speed limits and the 
desire to make downtown livable and to maintain its 
current character. 

• Parkville was built around transportation – the river 
and railroad – but over time con% icts have increased 
between the community and railroad. Noise, safety 
and the barrier created by trains are issues that 
concern property and business owners, as well as 
residents.

• In a small-scale downtown, the need for access to 
parking is critical for the success of some businesses. 
While data shows that parking utilization is at 
acceptable levels, there is a great desire to maintain 
adequate parking for the success of Downtown 
Parkville.

• Truck movements are critical for deliveries and 
service in Downtown Parkville.   e Main Street 
businesses rely on on-street deliveries and key issues 
are maintaining the ability to operate trucks without 
impeding vehicle and pedestrian mobility through 
downtown. 



33 

Recommendations

Recommendations 

1. Improve connectivity by enhancing the pedestrian 
environment in Downtown Parkville.

• Complete a corridor plan for East Street/Mo Rte 9 
to determine how best to provide pedestrian access 
from Rte 45 to downtown.

• Develop and adopt a sidewalk program to repair, 
replace and install sidewalks and ADA ramps to 
connect to community destinations.

• Complete an o$ -road trail plan that follows White 
Alloe Creek and provides access from Park University 
to downtown and other destinations. 

2. Preserve and protect vehicular % ow in and around 
downtown.

• Preserve the 25 mph speed limit in the downtown 
area.

• Use design features to achieve operating speeds 
closer to posted speed limits (i.e., gateway medians, 
pavement markings, on-street parking).

• Investigate construction of a roundabout at East Street 
and 1st Street with any potential redevelopment 
along East Street. Refer to X.

3. Minimize the railroad as a barrier between 
downtown, parking and the parks.

• Focus attention on near-term enhancements of the 
pedestrian experience along Main Street and East 
Street rather than high-dollar, long-range concepts 
that distract from enhancing downtown.

• At such time as the BNSF railway adds a second 
track, coordinate installation of a Quiet Zone 
with the railroad, MoDOT and Federal Railroad 
Administration.

• Complete a concept study for a grade separation over 
the BNSF from Rte FF near Crooked Road into 
Platte Landing Park.

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX



 34 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.1 – PDMP Sidewalk and Trail   
        Improvements Plan



35 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

4. Proactively address parking needs.

• Conduct regular turnover and occupancy counts to 
monitor usage of downtown parking to determine 
if and when parking restrictions should be 
implemented.

• Comply with ADA parking requirements when 
any streetscape enhancements or parking lot 
recon# gurations are completed.

• Include bicycle parking with any streetscape 
enhancements.

5. Preserve the ability to make truck movements in 
Downtown Parkville.

• Continue the “courtesy” approach to on-street 
deliveries that allows vehicles to traverse around 
trucks while loading/unloading.

• Follow professional design standards for truck 
turning radii when designing any streetscape or 
parking features.



 36 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

6. Additional detailed transportation and parking 
recommendations may be found in the Livable 
Communities Study.

3.7  Utility Infrastructure and Flooding 
Recommendations
Utility infrastructure is basic building block 
of development – existing, new development, 
redevelopment, and in# ll. Certain areas of Downtown 
Parkville are within the % oodplain and historic % ooding 
events have made a signi# cant mark on the character 
and development of the downtown. However in the 
case of PDMP, utility infrastructure and % ooding are 
but one factor in the identi# cation of enhancement or 
redevelopment opportunities.

Key Issues

•   e age and quality of utility infrastructure was a 
repeated concern as it relates to accommodating the 
needs of existing development and providing service to 
future development/redevelopment/in# ll. While certain 
desires for speci# c services, like public WiFi, were 
discussed; the general outcome focuses on the need for 
basic upgrades and assurance that future development is 
served by su&  cient infrastructure.

• Historically, % ooding has impacted Downtown 
Parkville through park and road closures and damage 
to structures. While the community comes together 
during critical % ood events, there is a perception 
that information on % ood levels in the downtown is 
not accurate and limits the day-to-day operation of 
downtown businesses.    ere is also a general concern 
that future development in % ood prone areas incorporates 
appropriate % ood control measures.

Recommendations 

1. Ensure that all future development/redevelopment/
in" ll is compatible with % ood boundaries.

•Require appropriate and adequate % ood control 
measures for future development/redevelopment/ 
in# ll.

2. Provide consistent and clear messaging during 
% ood events on the status of downtown operations 
to media and visitors.

3. Ensure that adequate utility service is provided in 
Downtown Parkville.

• Investigate cost saving measures for public utility 
service provided in the downtown.

• Plan for utility upgrades to aging systems for existing 
customers.



37 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

• Require appropriate and adequate utility installation 
for future development/redevelopment/ in# ll.

3.8 Parks, Recreation, and Natural 
Resources Recommendations
Parks, recreation, and natural resources can have a 
dramatic impact on the sustainability and the quality 
of life in a community.    is is especially true of 
downtown Parkville.    e Missouri River, English 
Landing Park, Parkville Nature Sanctuary/White Alloe 
Creek Conservation Area, hilly topography, and dense 
woodlands all add up to create a truly picturesque setting 
that is % ush with both active and passive recreational 
opportunities.  Preservation and enhancement of these 
resources is vital to the continued success of downtown 
Parkville, and a key component of the Downtown 
character.

Key Issues

• English Landing Park is an invaluable asset to the 
present and future success of the downtown area.

•   e community compartmentalizes English Landing 
Park and the downtown commercial district as two 
di$ erent places.

•   e downtown commercial district and the park do 
not capitalize on the proximity of each.

• Platte Landing Park will bring new tra&  c to 
downtown as it continues to be developed.

• Bruce Watkins Park and Adams Park are 
underutilized, aging, and in need of updating to 
serve the surrounding neighborhoods.

• Green space and trees are integral to maintaining 
the character of the downtown neighborhoods and 
parks.

•   e railway acts as a barrier between English Landing 
Park and the surrounding community.  

• A Redevelopment concept indicates moving the 
existing railway south through English Landing 
Park. 



 38 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Recommendations 

1. Preserve, protect, and enhance English Landing 
Park.

• Develop a long-range English Landing Park 
Enhancement Plan that would aim to preserve 
the beauty of the park and continue to create new 
interest and demand. 

•   e reconstruction of the park is complete from 
the previous % ood. Additional amenities could 
be added, but would need to address theior 
vulnerability to % ood damage.

• Additional amenities could include shelters, 
gardens, overlooks, plazas, fountains, etc.  

2. Enhance downtown synergy by increasing the 
cross tra$  c between the commercial district, 
English Landing Park, and the newly developed 
Platte Landing Park. 

• Improve the pedestrian experience between the 
commercial district and English Landing Park.

• Develop a cohesive streetscape plan for Main 
Street and East Street that addresses the 
relationship between the commercial district 
and the park.    e streetscape plan should 
include sidewalk and crosswalk improvements, 
amenities, site furnishings, landscaping, signage, 
and way# nding.

• Provide amenities along the streetscape that are 
targeted at meeting the needs of park users.  
Examples include dog parking, dog fountain, 
pod stations, bike parking, and benches.

• Improve pedestrian safety and the perception of 
safety for users crossing the railway.

• Consider commercial redevelopment of the 
municipal parking lot south of the railway as way 
to ‘close the gap’ between the commercial district 
and the park (see ‘3.9 Redevelopment and In# ll 
Recommendations’).

• Encourage a mix of services in the commercial 
district that cater to park users.

• Encourage compatible store hours with peak park 
use times.



39 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

3. Prepare a park redevelopment plan for Pocket 
Park on Main Street.

•   e current park does not have signi# cant uses or 
users.

•   e current park layout is old and worn.   e 
proliferation of di$ ering materials and level changes 
makes the current park design unnecessarily 
cluttered and busy.

• Access to hillside uses now currently vacant or 
sporadically open dominates the space for very little 
bene# t.

• A revised park plan should focus its design on 
creating a central gathering space in the Downtown, 
that would allow for people watching, relaxing, 
taking a break from shopping, or enjoying food 
services provided in the Downtown.   e focus 
should not be on developing ‘green space’ but 
community space. Potential improvements include 
seating, fountain, way# nding, signage, interpretive 
signage, lighting, shade structure, landscape beds, 
non-dominant vertical access to hill side, plaza and 
paving improvements.

4. Develop park improvement plans to the two 
neighborhood parks located downtown (Bruce 
Watkins Park and Adams Park).

• Develop a Parks Improvement Plan that assesses the 
current state of these two parks and o$ ers solutions 
to increase activity and improve aesthetics.

• Currently, the parks are underutilized, potentially 
because of a lack of amenities and the aged condition 
of existing amenities. 

5. Protect the existing woodland and hilly 
topography that limits development throughout 
much of the west half of the downtown residential 
neighborhood.

• Discourage the development of land in this area that 
would result in the loss of these natural resources.

• Erosion and slope issues currently discourages 
development of these areas.



 40 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

6. # e protection of open space and vegetation are 
important to reinforcing Downtown Character. 

• Develop tree preservation ordinances, with penalties 
for removing mature trees.

• Develop a tree preservation program for parks in 
Downtown that inspects them for age, condition, 
disease and hazards. Actively manage signi# cant 
trees to ensure their continued survival.

• Develop a tree replacement program for the 
Downtown neighborhoods.

• A comprehensive management plan that recognizes 
the importance of natural resources to Downtown 
Character should be developed for Downtown, 
including trees, vegetation, water, erosion, hillsides, 
slopes, views, and wildlife. 

• Minimum standards for open space dedication, 
landscape standards, and connectivity, compatible 
with the Downtown Character, should be developed 
to address potential future development and 
redevelopment in the Downtown area. 

7. Redevelopment concepts relocating the railway 
south through English Landing Park would have a 
signi" cant impact on the park

•   e vision for relocating the railroad line is contrary 
to the vision of building on the success of the park.

•   e alignment that meets railroad standards will 
run directly through the middle of English Landing 
Park, bisecting the park with the relocated rail line 
and side slopes for road bed.

• Grading operations to relocate the tracks would 
destroy signi# cant existing trees.

• Relocation of the track would signi# cantly impact or 
eliminate facilities in the park. 

•   e track would remain at its current elevation, 
resulting in an approximate 9 foot elevation change 
from the top of the tracks to the lower elevation of 
the Park.   is would have the corresponding side 
slopes, further widening the impacted area.

• Signi# cant impact to the visual and physical 
connections to the Missouri River would occur as 
well. 

• Relocation would create two narrow linear parks on 

each side of the east-west tracks instead of the larger 
contiguous park space that exists today.   is would 
reduce the programmability, usability, and variety 
of potential park uses.



41 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

3.9  Character of the built Environment/
Aesthetics Recommendations.
  e character of the built environment is essential to the 
overall quality of life of a community.  It can in% uence 
how people move through and interact within a space.  
It can also signi# cantly impact people’s perceptions of 
quality and value.     e built environment of downtown 
Parkville has a unique historic character that should be 
preserved and enhanced in a way that adds to the user/
visitor experience and reinforces Downtown Character.

Key Issues

•   e charming nature of the downtown commercial 
district is an invaluable asset to downtown Parkville 
and the greater Parkville community.

•   e residential neighborhoods add signi# cantly to 
the historic character and value of downtown.

• Downtown Parkville lacks a sense of arrival, 
particularly for those traveling along 9 Highway 
and Highway FF/Mill Street.

•   e downtown commercial district su$ ers from 
visual clutter and there is a sense that overall upkeep 
and maintenance is lacking.

•  Many of the storefronts in the downtown commercial 
district would bene# t from rehab e$ orts to refreshen 
and update their look.

• It is important that Parkville be itself, and not 
attempt to replicate another community’s success.

•   ere is concern from the downtown community 
that the creation of a historic district would result in 
overreaching regulation and loss of private property 
rights.

•   e streetscape within the downtown commercial 
district is generally uninviting for visitors due to 
narrow sidewalks, minimal seating opportunities, a 
lack of amenities, and deteriorating conditions.

•   e lack of branding in downtown Parkville 
represents a missed opportunity to beautify the area 
while also enhancing the visitor experience.



 42 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Recommendations 

1. Develop a full set of commercial district design 
guidelines for the commercial area so that new in" ll, 
redevelopment, and rehab projects " t the desired 
‘Downtown Character’.

• Preservation of the charming nature of downtown 
commercial area is important.

• Many of the structures in the downtown core 
are historic in nature. Most have been renovated 
continuously, but the underlying structure of the 
historic buildings still exists in many cases. 

•   e removal of facade clutter, non commercial 
grade materials, and materials and # nishes that do 
not match ‘Downtown Character’ should be a key 
component of the guidelines. 

•   e guidelines should reinforce ‘Downtown 
Character’.

•   e guidelines should de# ne the architectural 
styles, elements, materials, massing, heights, mix of 
acceptable uses, colors and detailing.

•   e design guidelines should include guidelines 
for new construction, rehabilitation, storefront 
renovation, and demolition.

• Establish a Missouri 353 Redevelopment program 
to encourage and assist in the rehabilitation of 
existing structures through the use of tax abatement 
for actual improvements made to rehabilitated 
structures.

• To ensure the unilaterally fair application of 
the guidelines, pass an ordinance requiring the 
application of the guidelines for both rehabilitation 
and new construction.

• Ensure compliance of the guidelines by proposed 
projects one of two ways:

• Set up a volunteer, independent commission 
of Parkville citizens and City sta$  to review 
compliance of design with the guidelines and 
is a recommending body to the Planning and 
Zoning Commission.   e commission could 
require changes for compliance with the design 
guidelines.

• City Sta$  could, in their normal course of duties, 
use the design guidelines as a reference document 
during the design/permit review process. 



43 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

• A more detailed discussion of design guideline 
strategies is included in Appendix F, A Preliminary 
Commercial Rehabilitation Design Guideline.   

2. Develop a fully layered gateway, signage and 
way" nding plan.

•   e Plan will help to de# ne visitors’ # rst impression 
of Downtown Parkville 

•   e Plan should unite signage and way# nding with 
Downtown’s branding and marketing e$ orts.   

•   e Plan should include the following elements:

• Primary gateway – “Welcome to Parkville”

• Secondary gateways – “Welcome to Downtown”

• Downtown markers – Marking the boundaries of 
the Downtown Core 

• Neighborhood markers – Marking the boundaries 
of the Downtown residential neighborhood 

• Vehicular Way# nding signage for ease of 
navigating to major elements in the Downtown 
area (Park University, Main Street, English 
Landing Park, Platte Landing Park, Parking).

• Pedestrian Way# nding signage to inform 
pedestrians of speci# c amenities, shopping, 
dining, services and recreation available in the 
Downtown area.

• Pedestrian Interpretive signage that informs 
pedestrians about the history, stories and people 
that have helped shape Downtown.

• Branding and Marketing elements tied into the 
overall Plan.

• Speci# c concept, design development and 
construction documentation of elements in the 
Plan.

• Cost Estimates for the Plan.  



 44 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

3. Preserve the historic character of Downtown 
neighborhoods.

• Refer to, 3.5 Land Use Recommendations, 
Recommendation 1, and 3.8 Parks, Recreation, 
and Natural Resources Recomendations, 
Recommendation #6 for proposed recommendations 
for preserving the historic character of the 
neighborhoods.  Identify properties that # t within 
the historic context of the neighborhood and those 
that do not.

4. Prepare a Design Guideline that provides direction 
and guidance for the redevelopment of East Street so 
that it " ts in with the desired Downtown Character.

• Currently East street is developed as a state highway, 
with lots focused on access to Route 9, with varied 
architectural and site scale, style, character, material, 
and use.

• In its current state, the existing development on both 
sides of 9 Highway/East Street and the roadway 
itself, do not # t with the vision of preserving and 
enhancing ‘Downtown Character’. Redevelopment 
of the area, as recommended in 3.12 Redevelopment 
and In# ll Recommendations, would allow the 
area to be planned to # t in with the fabric of the 
Downtown, increase critical mass of the Downtown 
area, provide for additional connectivity, provide 
options for additional uses and add amenities to 
Downtown. 

• Attention should be given to streetscape, pedestrian 
amenities, lighting, crosswalks and landscape so 
that they may # t into the recommended streetscape 
improvements for Main Street.

• Attention should be given to the site planning and 
architecture of the redevelopment to ensure it # ts 
in with ‘Downtown Character’ Appropriateness 
of style, massing, height, materials, location and 
relationship of parking and buildings, signage, and 
colors are all critical issues to be dealt with.

• Attention should be given to the nature and 
character of the roadway to address the current 
transportation issues, redevelopment needs, and 
future transportation needs when the roadway is 
redeveloped.     



45 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

5. Further discussion with the Community is 
required to determine its desire to pursue any 
designation of a Historic District. 

•   ere was discussion with the community in the 
Parkville Master Plan, the Livable Community 
Study, and in the PDMP about establishing a 
historic district, but consensus or support by 
property owners has not been indicated.    

•   e Parkville Downtown Core has su&  cient historic 
integrity to satisfy a preliminary Determination of 
Eligibility (DOE) which is the # rst step toward 
the creation of a downtown historic district.  

• A downtown historic district could assist the 
Downtown by attracting new businesses, as well 
as providing incentives for the rehabilitation of 
these historic properties.

•   e downtown could be listed on the National 
Register as a historic district or could be locally 
recognized as a historic district through city 
ordinance.  

• A conservation district or planned zoning ordinance 
are other ways to protect the historic character of 
the area and promote the rehabilitation of existing 
properties.  

•   ese mechanisms are accomplished through 
increased awareness and approval of the property 
owners and community and by approval by the 
City of Parkville through the rati# cation of a city 
ordinance.  

• A variety of funding strategies for rehabilitating 
existing properties are available depending on 
the route chosen.    ese include state and federal 
historic tax credit programs if listed on the 
National Register (either individual properties 
or as a historic district) and low interest loans 
or grants from a variety of public and non-pro# t 
sources.  

• A more detailed discussion of historic district 
strategies is included in Appendix E, Historic 
District Report.  



 46 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.1 – Gateways & Wayfi nding Paln



47 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

6. Develop a streetscape redevelopment plan in the 
Commercial Core of Downtown to address the worn, 
and tired existing streetscape.

• Elements of the plan should include: 

• Updated walks and crosswalks that are designed 
to # t the historic quality of Downtown, increase 
safety and provide for increased attractiveness of 
the area.

• Development of site furnishing standards to be 
used throughout the district.

•   e incorporation of added seating opportunities 
throughout the district.

• Branding and amenities should be added to 
enhance look and experience of downtown 
streetscape.

• Provide amenities along the streetscape that are 
targeted at meeting the needs of park users.  
Examples include dog parking, dog fountain, 
pod stations, bike parking, and benches.

• Improve pedestrian safety and the perception of 
safety for users crossing the railway by installing 
pedestrian gates if a quad-gate system is installed 
at the railroad crossings.

• Incorporate signage, way# nding, and branding 
e$ orts into the streetscape.

• Moving the railroad signal tower obstruction at 
the southeast corner of the railroad tracks and 
Main Street to open up views of downtown to 
the public parking lot south of the tracks

3.10  Operations and Function 
Recommendations
Operations and function refers to the way that a business 
or group of businesses is run on a day-to-day basis in 
order to satisfy the needs/demands of their potential 
clientele base.   e regulation or standardization of 
business operations can be quite complex when multiple, 
individually owned and managed businesses with 
di$ erent goals and aspirations are involved.  Downtown 
Parkville’s focus, in regards to operations and function, is 
to ensure that the business community work collectively 
to establish and maintain a basic level of professional 
service that adds to the overall user experience, meets 



 48 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

visitor expectations and improves customer retention of 
the area.

Key Issues

• Many of the businesses downtown do not have 
standard or consistent operation hours that are 
conducive to attracting and retaining visitors.

•   e regulation of business operations downtown is 
often met with resistance.

•   e lack of directional and informational signage 
and way# nding makes downtown di&  cult to 
navigate for those unfamiliar with the area.

•   ere is interest amongst business owners in 
providing recycling services within the downtown 
commercial district.

•   ere is interest in providing public restrooms within 
the downtown commercial district.

Recommendations 

1. Establish a business atmosphere in the downtown 
commercial district that encourages the type of 
full-time, professionally run businesses that are 
necessary to attract repeat customers.

• Identify and foster the continued growth of full-
time businesses that have proven to be successful in 
downtown Parkville.

• Identify and encourage the establishment of 
additional full-time businesses and/or destination 
services that would be successful and # t within the 
contextual atmosphere of downtown Parkville.

• Consider regulating the hours of operation for the 
downtown commercial district for a minimum of 
peak shopping and park user times.

2. Introduce regulatory procedures in the 
downtown commercial district that are proven to 
lead to increased business through improved visitor 
experience.

• Encourage, mediate, and help build consensus 
amongst the business community for regulatory 
procedures that will positively a$ ect downtown.  



49 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Examples include the following:

• Storefront parking for owners and employees

• Hours of operation

• Maintenance and upkeep of streetscape and 
buildings

• Development of Design Guidelines

• Design Review Committee

3. Enhance the visitor experience, marketing, and 
brand identi" cation by improving the way" nding 
and signage throughout downtown.

• Develop a comprehensive Way# nding and 
Directional Signage Plan for vehicular, bicycle, and 
pedestrian level tra&  c that achieves the following:

• Directs tra&  c in and out of the downtown area.

• Informs visitors of the services and activities 
available to them downtown and directs them in 
the direction of said services and activities.

• Creates interaction and excitement for visitors.

• Reinforces the identi# able brand in of downtown 
in the market to continue to build on marketing 
e$ orts.

• Display a consistent marketing message and 
brand.

• Refer to, 3.9 Character of the Built Environment/
Aesthetics Recommendations, Recommendation 
2, for plan contents.

4. Provide additional public services (recycling, 
restrooms) that can bene" t visitors, business owners, 
and employees of downtown Parkville.

• Explore the scope, feasibility, and available funding 
resources for providing recycling services downtown.

• Include storefront side recycling alongside trash 
receptacles as streetscape furniture.

• Provide back of house recycling for the businesses 
in downtown if the needs are warranted.   

• Develop a Downtown Restroom Feasibility Plan 
so that cost, location, operation, and maintenance 
issues can be determined for providing a public 
restroom in the downtown commercial core.



 50 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

•   ere are currently no public restrooms in 
downtown.

• Restrooms are made available by some merchants.

• Many districts do not provide public restroom 
facilities because of operation, safety, and 
maintenance issues.   ose districts rely on 
businesses to provide restroom facilities.   at in 
turn drives customers to those businesses.

• Hours of operation issues in the downtown 
prevent access to restroom facilities if businesses 
are closed.    

3.11  Economic Development 
Recommendations
Economic development typically provides the means 
for growth through job expansion, new residents, new 
homes, demand for new consumer goods and services, 
and added sales and property taxes.  For downtown 
Parkville, steady and sustainable growth of the 
commercial district is essential to making it a destination 
for local/regional tourism and commerce. 

Downtown’s economic survival and redevelopment hinges 
on expanding the current market niches, introducing new 
market niches, and providing consumers a larger selection 
of merchandise and services.

Key Issues

•   e future growth in population and income will 
generate additional consumer purchasing power and 
retails sales growth.

•   e future growth of o&  ce-related employment will 
increase the demand for professional and medical 
o&  ce space in Platte County and Parkville.

• Growth in population and employment will create a 
demand for new housing

Recommendations 

1. A key in improving the business climate in 
downtown Parkville will be to increase the inventory 
of commercial space and level of business and 
customer activity.  



51 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

• Higher density, mixed-use development should be 
encouraged.    is development format promotes 
increased density, security, pedestrian activity and 
business activity.

• Increasing the housing stock through “in# ll” 
development will be a key component in enhancing 
the pedestrian activity and economic vitality of 
downtown.  

• A mix of attached housing catering to students and 
young adults is recommended along with in-# ll 
single family housing within the neighborhoods 
surrounding the central business district.  Second 
% oor residential over commercial space should be 
encouraged.

2. Prospective commercial development/
Redevelopment sites include: 

• Surface parking lot on the east side of Main Street 
south of the rail road track

•   e 2.2-acre surface parking lot bound by the 
rail road track to the north, McAfee Street to the 
south, East Street to the east and Main Street 
to the west is ideal for extending commercial 
development on Main Street south of the rail road 
track as well as increase the inventory and critical 
mass of commercial space in the downtown core. 

•   e best suited development formats include 
downtown-style, mixed-use commercial 
buildings supporting retail and o&  ce uses. 

• Two-story buildings are appropriate on the 
western portion of the site fronting Main Street 
with surface or structured parking on the eastern 
half.

• Assuming a zero setback on Main Street the site 
could accommodate an estimated 50,000 to 
70,000 square feet of commercial space.

• East side of Highway 9 from 1st Street north to 6th 
Street

•   e prospective development site located on the 
east side of Highway 9 from 1st Street north 
to 6th Street consists of nine individual parcels 
totaling approximately 3.66 acres.  

• Existing land uses include a U.S. Post O&  ce, 
former restaurant, two single family homes, Glen’s 



 52 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Automotive, Four Seasons Lawn & Landscape and 
vacant land.  

•   is site is considered downtown’s premier 
development site o$ ering superior access, visibility, 
exposure and the size to facilitate the development 
of several commercial formats. 

•    e most appropriate development format is 2- 
and 3-story mixed-use structures supporting retail, 
o&  ce and residential uses. 

• Assuming a “Main Street” design the site could 
accommodate an estimated 240,000 to 280,000 
square feet of building area.    e mix of space 
would be approximately half commercial and half 
residential, with the inventory of housing totaling 
approximately 125 to 175 dwelling units.

• Development of Highway 9 from 1st to 6th Streets 
would provide a much needed highway entry 
window for downtown and facilitate a broader 
range of goods and services businesses.  

• Development of this section of Highway 9 would 
also provide a “bridge” more e$ ectively connecting 
downtown Parkville with Park University.

• West side of Highway 9 from 1st Street north to 6th 
Street.

•   e prospective development site located on the 
west side of Highway 9 from 1st Street north to 6th 
Street consists of twelve individual parcels totaling 
approximately 1.07 acres. 

• Existing land uses include the French Bee Bakery, 
parking lot, nine single family homes and a 4-unit 
apartment building. 

•   e street right-of-way patterns and shallow lot 
depths for the properties fronting the west side of 
Highway 9 will limit the potential to accommodate 
large-scale mixed-use development.

• Likely development scenarios include the adaptive 
re-use of the existing residential structures or razing 
current structures to facilitate the construction of 
single-tenant commercial buildings or multi-family 
housing.



53 

Recommendations

3.12 Redevelopment and Infi ll 
Recommendations
As has been identifi ed in previous recommendation 
sections, there are several redevelopment and infi ll 
opportunities that exist within downtown Parkville.  
What follows is a description of these opportunities and 
how they may benefi t the long-term success of downtown, 
along with supporting graphics and conceptual plans. 

Recommendations
Redevelopment of East Street - East Side
Th e 9 Highway/East Street corridor, from 1st Street 
to 6th Street, represents an excellent redevelopment 
opportunity that could serve as a catalyst for future 
growth and investment in downtown Parkville.  Given 
its signifi cance within the transportation network 
of Parkville, a reimagined East Street could improve 
community connectivity, create additional commercial 
critical mass by eff ectively doubling the downtown 
commercial area, while also helping to 9 Highway fi t 
better into the Downtown Character desired by the 
community.

Multiple concepts for East Street Redevelopment have 
been created.  Figures X, Y, and Z illustrate what such 
a reimagined East Street might look like. Regardless 
of the specifi c redevelopment design of the area, key 
elements incorporated include:

1. Th e introduction of a roundabout at the intersection 
of 1st Street and 9 Highway as a way to effi  ciently 
control traffi  c through this major intersection, improve 
pedestrian crossings, and provide an ideal location for 
a signifi cant gateway element that signals the arrival to 
downtown Parkville.

2. Redevelopment of the road and streetscape from 1st 
to 6th Street to include consistent sidewalks, street trees, 
street lights and improved pedestrian crossings.

• Road redevelopment is critical to the redevelopment 
of East Street/9 Highway.

• Current posted speed restrictions are seldom 
followed. 

Fig. 3.X – XXXX



 54 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX Fig. 3.X – XXXX



55 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

•   e design and function of the roadway will determine 
the development design of the redevelopment area 
to a large extent. 

• A road designed to encourage speedy travel of 
vehicular tra&  c does not encourage connectivity 
of other modes of transportation, does not 
encourage Downtown Character, or allow 
commercial buildings to face the street.

• A road designed to maintain current posted speed 
limits, will # t into the community’s indicated 
Downtown Character, and allow the safe crossing  
of pedestrians.

• Building facades will face their main parking 
# eld, unless they have a minimum of parking at 
their front entrance. A redeveloped East Street/9 
Highway without on street parking will ensure 
that the front entrance facades of the buildings 
will face East, away from the road.    

3.   e redevelopment area should follow the following 
standards.

• All redevelopment should reinforce the desired 
Downtown Character in style of architecture, 
massing, scale, height, materials, and detailing. 

• Redeveloped properties should be commercial or 
mixed use in nature.

• Buildings should be oriented toward East Street 
with minimal street o$ sets and all parking should 
be located toward the rear of the properties.

• All redevelopment e$ orts should be coordinate with 
Park University.    e University owns property at 
the north end of this redevelopment area, so it will 
be important to understand, accommodate, and 
complement their future plans.

• Shared parking for the development area is important 
to yield required parking.

• Connections to the Alloe Creek Trail should be 
made.

• Pedestrian and vehicular connections to the 
university should be accomplished if possible. 

• Install a pedestrian activated crossing signal at 6th 
Street.



 56 

Recommendations

Redevelopment of East Street - West Side

• Redevelopment of the properties along the west side of 
East Street, from 2nd Street to 6th Street.

• Because of narrow lot depths on the west side of 
East Street/9 Highway, redevelopment of this area is 
more limited in nature.

• Adaptive reuse of existing residential structures for 
commercial uses is possible.

• Redevelopment of existing building sites would allow 
for single building commercial redevelopment. 

• Care must be taken to ensure that the character of 
development of new commercial sites is in concert 
with the stated vision of reinforcing Downtown 
Character. Narrow depth lots and side parking 
lots will make this a challenge. 

•   e use of screening, materials, buildings, 
fencing and landscape on the street side edge 
of all development sites is critical to ensure 
redevelopment of properties # t in with the 
character of downtown. 

•   e ultimate design and function of the roadway 
will have a signi# cant e$ ect on redevelopment of 
properties. 

Redevelopment of Residential Neighborhood along 
West Street

  ere are numerous issues in the residential neighborhood 
on West Street that would lend itself to being a potential 
site for residential redevelopment.  Such issues include:

• Hilly terrain and a broken street grid cause the area 
to feel isolated from the rest of downtown.

• Pedestrian connections to the downtown core are 
limited and unsafe.

•   e overall character of West Street is very di$ erent 
from Main Street.

•   e homes along West Street do not have the same 
historic character as those located on or close to 
Main Street.

• Numerous properties are in disrepair.

• Numerous properties are vacant.

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX



57 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Figure X indicates a potential redevelopment scenario 
for a modest residential development.  Key elements of 
this concept include:

• Th e preservation of the existing woodland and 
topography.

• 15 Single family, 2-story homes with detached 2-car 
garages that complement the historic character of 
the downtown neighborhoods.

• Single family homes built to the current average 
home value of new home permits in Parkville.

• Sidewalk connections and landscape buff ers along 
FF Highway/Mill Street, from Crooked Road to 
Main Street.

• Sidewalk replacement/infi ll where needed along the 
west side of West Street

• Neighborhood Markers that identify entry into the 
neighborhood.

• Adding new members of the community to utilize 
the goods, services, and amenities off ered in the 
downtown area.

• Provides potential housing to the area that fi ts 
with the Downtown Character and fabric of the 
Downtown Neighborhoods.

• Removes existing blight.
• A larger contiguous redevelopment area is more 

marketable for redevelopment than single infi ll lots.

Redevelopment of the Downtown Core/Park 
Transition Area
Th e lack of cross traffi  c between the downtown core 
and English Landing Park is a problem that could be 
addressed from multiple perspectives.  Th e simplest 
solution would be to redevelop the streetscape along 
Main Street and East Street, from McAfee Street to 2nd 
Street.  Improvements would include:

• Bulb-outs to accommodate additional landscaping 
and improved pedestrian safety

• Sidewalk and crosswalk improvements
• ADA accessible routes
• Amenities and site furnishings
• Signage and wayfi nding



 58 

Recommendations

Making these improvements would create a more 
unifi ed, cohesive Main Street that would encourage 
movement across the railroad tracks.

A second solution, shown in Figure X, would be to 
bridge the gap by completely redeveloping the municipal 
parking lot and small baseball fi eld south of the tracks.  
Elements of this concept would include:

• Streetscape improvements as identifi ed in the fi rst 
solution

• Additional retail development on the east side of 
Main Street, south of the tracks

• Regrading of Main Street, south of the tracks, 
to accommodate the elevation of the new retail 
development

• Relocation of the Farmers Market to the current 
location of the small baseball fi eld south of McAfee 
Street

• Redevelopment of the remaining portion of the 
small baseball fi eld to a multi-purpose green space

• Reorganization of the parking in this transition area 
to accommodate both shoppers and park users.

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX



59 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX



 60 

Recommendations

Relocation of the Railroad Tracks

  e impact of the existing railroad tracks on downtown 
continues to be a source of frustration for many in 
the community.    ough the tracks are integral to the 
history and culture of Parkville, their proximity to the 
downtown commercial district creates numerous issues 
that have to be dealt with on a frequent basis.  Issues 
include, signi# cant horn and train noise, vibration, and 
blocking access in and out of English Landing Park, 
the municipal parking lot and English Landing Center 
just south of FF Highway/Mill Street on Main and East 
Streets.

Within the Downtown Parkville business community, 
a few property owners prepared a solution for moving 
the railroad tracks south of the municipal parking lot 
and English Landing Center.   is alignment had some 
impact to English Landing Park. Upon review of this 
concept, TranSystems, Inc., (lead consultant on the 
Livable Communities Study Transportation Study, 
and a member of the Downtown Master Plan Team) 
determined that the horizontal curves and layout would 
not meet railroad standards and could not be considered 
a viable option for that reason alone. TranSystems, an 
expert in railway design, did however provide a track 
layout that would meet railroad standards.   e Livable 
Communities Study explored options and costs for this 
route and considered the cost of the relocation very high 
for the potential with numerous negative impacts.  It 
was therefore not recommended as a course of action in 
the Livable Communities Study(LCS). 

While the LCS investigated the transportation impacts 
and costs of the concept, additional study on the land 
use impacts, park impacts and potential redevelopment 
opportunities the concept may represent was not 
explored.   e local property owners who prepared the 
original concept continued to request additional study 
of the concept.   e Master Plan Team agreed to address 
the concept again. 

  e Master Plan Team prepared a concept plan for 
the relocation of the railroad tracks south from their 
current location to the location determined to meet 
their minimum design standards.   is alignment can 

be seen on Figure X. Figure X also depicts a potential 
redevelopment of the area if the tracks could be relocated. 

To evaluate the concept, it is necessary to understand 
the positive and negative aspects of the plan.

# e positive impacts can be seen as:

• Relocation of railroad tracks further from the 
Downtown Core helps to address noise and vibration 
issues. Noise issues continue to exist if a quiet zone 
is not installed through Downtown. 

• If the Railroad determines that a double track is 
going to be constructed, this would move the extra 
railway activity away from the Downtown Core.

•   e limiting of access to the municipal parking 
lot and English Landing Center when trains are 
running is eliminated. Full park access continues to 
be an issue.

•   e potential of reorganizing circulation to address 
the o$ set of 1st Street and Mill Street/FF in 
downtown becomes possible. 

• A potential new alignment of Mill Street could 
connect with the signalized entry at Park University 
on Highway 9.

• New redevelopment opportunities may exist along 
reorganized circulation routes.

• Railway could be a potential % ood control measure.

# e negative impacts can be seen as:

• Relocation of the tracks would route the railway 
directly through English Landing Park.   is would 
bisect the park, reducing the size of the Park, and its 
basic character and nature.

• Grading operations to relocate the tracks would 
destroy signi# cant existing trees.

• Relocation of the track would signi# cantly impact or 
eliminate facilities in the park. 

•   e track would remain at its current elevation, 
resulting in an approximate 9 foot elevation change 
from the top of the tracks to the lower elevation of 
the Park.   is would have the corresponding side 
slopes, further widening the impacted area.



61 

Recommendations

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

• Signifi cant impact to the visual and physical 
connections to the Missouri River would occur as 
well. 

• Current views from Highway 9 are over tracks and 
to park and Missouri River. In the concept, views 
would be across a narrow park, then to railroad 
berm, which would then obstruct some views to 
river. 

• Relocation would create two narrow linear parks on 
each side of the east-west tracks instead of the larger 
contiguous park space that exists today. Th is would 
reduce the programmability, usability, and variety 
of potential park uses.

• An at-grade crossing still exists south of English 
Landing Center that will continue to limit access to 
the baseball fi eld, half of the redesigned park, and 
all of Platte Landing Park.

• Th e railroad does not have interest or desire in having 
their track and berm become a fl ood control dike. 
Any fl ood control measures, armoring, protection, 
etc would be the responsibility of the City, and so 

would the maintenance of those.
• Signifi cant impacts to the fl oodway will occur 

with the relocation, which will require signifi cant 
regulatory review.   

• Estimated costs for relocation of only the railroad 
berm and new tracks is $6-8 million. Th is does 
not include the relocation or development of new 
roads and stream crossings, demolition of existing 
railroad, intersection improvements, Highway 
9 improvements, relocation of the current sewer 
pump station, acquisition and ROW costs, park 
redesign and construction, additional grading to 
match surrounding grades, stream crossings or 
road crossings, attorney fees, design fees, and other 
miscellanea. 

Proponents of the relocated railroad track concept have 
been small, but vocal. Th e majority of input the Master 
Plan Team has received from the community has not 
been supportive of the concept due to cost, impacts 
to English Landing Park and lack of assurance that 



 62 

Recommendations

relocation would guarantee elimination of the train 
noise. 

Although, the concept could have positive impact for 
the Downtown Commercial Core and be # nancially 
bene# cial for some property owners, the relocation is 
not recommended.  

With the negative impacts to English Landing Park, 
the cost of executing the relocation, the unknown costs, 
the lack of full community support, and the " oodway 
impacts it is our recommendation to not pursue 
this concept.  Resources would be better utilized 
pursuing other solutions to reduce train noise and 
reduce tra#  c con" icts, as well as implementing other 
recommendations to improve Downtown as outlined 
in the Master Plan.

Other Redevelopment Opportunities

• Redevelopment of Bruce Watkins Park and 
Adams Park so that they may be more functional 
for the residents of downtown Parkville (see 
‘3.5 Parks, Recreation, and Natural Resources 
Recommendations’).

• Redevelopment of the retail uses along Mill Street.  
As downtown grows and tra&  c along Highway FF/
Mill Street increases, this area will become a logical 
location for future expansion of the downtown 
shopping experience.

•   ere are multiple opportunities throughout the 
residential neighborhood to redevelop single lots 
that are in disrepair or don’t # t the historic context 
of downtown.  Many of these properties are multi 
-family in nature, and it may make sense to convert 
some of them back to single-family homes.

In" ll Opportunities

By de# nition, in# ll is the development of underutilized 
or undeveloped land or properties surrounded by 
other utilized properties or buildings.    e residential 
neighborhood has a few properties that # t this 
de# nition, and those properties have been identi# ed on 
Figure X.  However, it is important to note that there 

are a number of currently vacant lots along the west half 
of the neighborhood that have not been recommended 
for in# ll.    ese lots are typically dense in vegetation 
and steep in slope, which would be a challenge for any 
kind of in# ll development.   More importantly, these 
characteristics are viewed as an asset by the community.  
  ey have more value as undeveloped green space than 
they do as new, single family homes.

 

  

Fig. 3.X – XXXX

Fig. 3.X – XXXX






























































































	Agenda
	4. Consent Agenda
	A. Regular Meeting Minutes 11/5/13
	B. Work Session Minutes 10/15/13
	C. Work Session Minutes 10/29/13
	D. Work Session Minutes 11/5/13
	E. Accounts Payable
	Policy Report
	Report


	5A. Nicholas Pence Hiring Ordinance
	Policy Report
	Ordinance

	5B. 2014 Employee Health Insurance
	Policy Report
	Premium Share Options
	UHC Proposal
	Coventry Proposal

	6A. Downtown Master Plan
	Policy Report
	Section 3.0 Recommendations

	8E. Financial Report
	Report Ending 10/31/13


